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Olivehurst Public Utility District 

Agenda Item Staff Report 

Meeting Date:  02/16/2023 

Item description/summary: 

OPUD was requested for Riverside Meadows Park reimbursable which were developed by Legacy 
Homes. Per Parks Development Agreement via OPUD and Plumas Lake Riverside Meadows, L.P. 
signed December 29th 2004 and reviewed by Russ Powell from Economic & Planning Services (EPS), it 
was deemed the developer met all requirements within the agreement and are refundable via 
reimbursements for the amount of $943,700.39 
 
 

 
Fiscal Analysis: 

Will reduce $940,700.39 from the existing Neighborhood fund of $7.7 million which are collected from each lot 
that’s developed and collected for future parks. The requested amount is within existing amount remaining in 
the neighborhood parks funding account and is within the budgeted/alotted amount for this park. 

 
Employee Feedback 

n/a 
 
 
 
 

 
Sample Motion: 

Move to Board approval to reimburse Legacy for $943,700.39 for development of Riverside Meadows 
Park. 

 
Prepared by: Swarnjit Boyal, Public Work Engineer 
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ATTACHMENT A – PARK DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
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ATTACHMENT B – Riverside Meadows Park Improvement 

Reimbursement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



M E M O R A N D U M

To: Swarnjit Boyal

From: Russ Powell 

Subject: Riverside Meadows Park Improvement 
Reimbursement; EPS #222149 

Date: January 23, 2023 

The Olivehurst Public Utility District (District) requested that 
Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) review documents 
submitted by Legacy Homes (Developer) seeking authorized 
reimbursement costs for a 4.8-acre park, constructed in the 
Riverside Meadows project in Plumas Lake. Under the Park 
Development Agreement (Agreement) for Riverside Meadows 
(dated December 29, 2004), the Developer is allowed a 
reimbursement of park construction costs that are the lesser of 
these: 

A. The actual costs of designing and installing final
improvements of the park;

B. The budgeted costs approved by the District and included
in the Agreement; or

C. The costs of constructing the park shown in the Nexus
Study justified in the adoption of the park fee program.

The Developer prepared a packet of materials supporting the 
requested reimbursement amount of $947,237.39 for the 
completed park. EPS reviewed supporting materials for this 
reimbursement and, working with the Developer, found that an 
invoice for $3,230 was included twice but was corrected with a 
reconciliation. The reconciled total actual cost of park 
construction is $943,700.39. An invoice for $307 for a 
replacement swing seat was removed from the requested 
reimbursement total as it was a replacement cost for a 
previously included cost. 

As stated previously, the Developer is allowed reimbursement 
of the lesser of the three amounts, which in this case, is 
$943,700.39. 
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Table 1 shows the calculated amounts of budgeted costs for park construction 
and construction costs assumed in the Nexus Study, which justified the amount of 
the park fee originally. 

Table 1
Riverside Meadows Park Construction Reimbursement

(A) Actual Park Construction Costs $943,700.39

(B) Original Construction Cost Estimate (March 7, 2006)

Amount $751,312
ENR-CCI Increase 179%
Current Year Value $1,346,250

(C) Nexus Study Park Cost Assumptions (June 2005)

Cost per Acre $115,000
Total Park Acreage 4.80
Total Park Costs Based on Nexus Study [1] $552,000
ENR-CCI Increase 179%
Current Year Nexus Study Park Costs $989,110

The lesser of the above costs $943,700.39

ENR-CCI Adjustment

3/1/2006 1/1/2023 Increase
20-City 7,692.00 13,175.03 171%
San Francisco 8,444.44 15,798.78 187%

Average 179%

[1] Includes land improvements only and does not include
allowable park amenities.
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The budgeted costs for park construction were $751,312 in 2006 dollars. The park 
fee program allows an annual increase in the amount of the park fee based on the 
average increase of the Engineering News-Record (ENR)-Construction Cost Index 
(CCI) for 20-Cities and San Francisco. As such, EPS increased the budgeted
amount of park construction by the average increase in the ENR-CCI from
March 2006 to January 2023 (179 percent). The new increased budgeted cost was
$1,346,250 (2006 dollars).

The Nexus Study, which justified the park fee program, assumed a cost of 
construction for basic park improvements of $115,000 per acre. The Nexus Study 
is dated June 16, 2005. Increasing park construction costs using the ENR-CCI 
from March 2006 to January 1, 2023, for a 4.8-acre park brought the current-year 
basic park construction costs to $989,100. EPS did not increase costs dating 
back to June 2005 as these basic cost values, as inflated from March 2006 to 
January 2023, exceeded the actual costs of construction. It should be noted that 
park construction costs included in the Nexus Study contained values for other 
improvements made to parks, such as tables, benches, playgrounds, and ball 
fields. EPS did not quantify these costs as the cost of basic improvements 
exceeded the actual costs of construction. 

Table 2 shows the summary of reimbursement costs by component and vendor. 

Table 3 summarizes invoices by component and vendor. 

Table 2
Summary of Reimbursments by Vendor and Task

Vendor Task Amount

Odyssey Landscape Landcape Architect $6,800.00
MHM Survey $4,328.90
MHM Compaction Testing $1,909.80
OPUD Deposits $6,516.34
Odyssey Landscape Construction $919,481.85
Blain Stumpf Safety Fencing $4,663.50
Total $943,700.39



DRAFT
Table 3

Riverside Meadows Park Construction Reimbursement

Invoice Summary by Vendor

Odyssey Odyssey M-H-M OPUD Blain Stumpf

Item Landscape Architect Construction Survey/Compaction Deposits Construction Fence Total

1 $6,800.00 $853,090.92 $2,816.50 $1,516.34 $3,618.00

2 $7,728.00 $2,622.20 $5,000.00 $576.30

3 $5,850.00 $800.00 $469.20

4 $3,230.00

5 $22,206.11

6 $13,676.82

7 $7,700.00

8 $307.00

9 $1,350.00

10 $4,650.00

Totals $6,800.00 $919,788.85 $6,238.70 $6,516.34 $4,663.50 $944,007.39

Adjustments [1] ($307.00)

Reimbursement $6,800.00 $919,481.85 $6,238.70 $6,516.34 $4,663.50 $944,007.39

[1] Replacement part not to be included in reimbursment totals.
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